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28 de abril de 2009 

Sr. Raymond Vega Clemente 
Sub-Comisionado Auxiliar 
Asesoramiento, Reglamento 
e Intervenci6n Fiscal 
OCAM 
PO Box 70167 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 00936-8167 

Estimado senor Vega: 

Reciba un saludo cordial de todos los que trabajamos en la Administraci6n Municipal de Adjuntas, 
que dirige nuestro Alcalde Jaime H. Barlucea Maldonado. 

Adjunto el correspondiente "Single Audit" al 30 de junio de 2008, para su edificaci6n y tracto 
correspondiente. 

Con nuestro saludo y respeto, quedo 

Cordialmente, 

Q_2Jlf 
a~~. Quiles 

Director de Finanzas 
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Certified Public Accountant .\IDIBER: 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 
Puerto Rico Society of Cer tified Public Accountants 

PO BOX 408, 44 RAFAEL LASA ST., AGUAS BUENAS, PR 00703 TELEFONO: 787-732-8020- FAX: 787-732-0685 - E MAJL: cardiaz@prtc.net 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Municipal Legislative Body 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Adjuntas, Puerto Rico 

I have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities. each major funds, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the Municipality of Adjuntas as of and for the year ended June 
30, 2008 which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's management. My responsibility is 
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I did not audit the financial 
statements of the business-type activities. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report 
have been furnish to me, and in my opinion. insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Valle Verde, 
are based solely on the report of the other auditors. 

I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audit Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fi nancial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, as wel l as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fa irly, in all material respect the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities. each major funds, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Municipality of Adjuntas as of June 30, 2008, and the respective 
changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED): 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. I have also issued my report date December 5, 2008 
on my consideration of Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control over financial reporting and on my 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion of the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compl iance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and important for assessing the results of 
my audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 14 
and 43 through 45 are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary 
information required by accounting principles genera lly accepted in the United States of America. I have 
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, I did not audit 
the information and express no opinion on it. 

My audit was conducted for the purpose of form ing opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Municipality of Adjuntas basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures offederal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office 
of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applies in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my 
opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in re lations to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

December 5, 2008 
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico 

License No. 1339 
Expire December I, 2010 
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The stamp No. 2373635 of the Puerto Rico 
Society of Certified Public Accountants was 
affixed to the original of th is report. 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

MANAGEMENT AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the Municipality of Ad juntas (Municipality) financial performance 
provides an overview of the Municipality's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2008. 
Please read it in conjunction with the financial statements, which begin on page 15. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Municipality has reported assets amounting to $25.4 million in the accompanying 
statement of net assets, of which most significant are capital assets and cash and cash 
equivalents amounting to $9.05 million and $13.39 million respectively. 

• Also, the Statement of Net Assets for the Governmental Activities of the Municipality shows 
$11.69 millions in capital assets without debts. It represents that the capital assets of the 
Municipality are not pledged with neither long nor short-term liabilities. 

• The Municipality is the defendant of a lawsuit filed by approximately 82 individuals who 
claims political harassment and discrimination. During June 30, 2005 the Municipality paid 
$1,365.000 under operational loans to 20 out of 82 plaintiffs. On November 2006 the jury 
determined in favor of the 62 plaintiffs for the amount of $12,500,000. This sum must be 
paid within one hundred and twenty days rrom entry of this judgment. During fiscal year 
2007 the Municipality paid $619,000 under operational loan to distribute to 62 plaintiffs. In 
2008 the Municipality paid $633,000. 

• The Statement of Governmental Activities shows that the net assets of the Municipality 
increased by $1, 192.984 for the period ended June 30, 2008. 

• During the year. the Municipality reported revenues of $8.08 million in the General Fund of 
total revenues restricted and unrestricted of $12.06 million. 

• It is interesting to observe that in the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds, the 
Municipality has in the State Legislative Joint Resolutions Fund, available cash totaling 
$1.31 millions and total assets of$3.80 millions to develop public works and perform special 
projects to benefit the Adjuntas' citizenship. 

• The Municipality has reported total expenses amounting to $12.08 million m the 
accompanying statement of activities. 

3 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the 
Statement of Activities (on page 15 through 17) provide information about the activities of the 
Municipality as a whole and present a long-term view of the Municipality 's finances. Fund financial 
statements start on page 20. For governmental activities. these statements tell how these services were 
financed in the short te1m as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also 
report the Municipalities ' operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing 
information about the Municipality' s most significant funds. 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

The Municipality's financial statements include three components: 
1. the government-wide financial statements 
2. the fund financial statements 
3. notes of the financial statements 

These components are described below: 

Government-wide financial statement: The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to 
provide to readers with a broad overview of the Municipality's operations and finance as a whole in a 
manner simi lar to private-sector business. These statements provide shott-term and long-term 
information about the Municipality's financial position. which assist the Municipality's management to 
determine the economic condition at the end of the fiscal year. These financial statements are prepared 
using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This 
basically means that these financial statements follow methods that are similar to those used by most 
businesses. They take into account all revenues and expenses connected with the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2008 even if cash involved have not been received or paid. The Government-Wide Financial 
Statements include: (I) the Statements of Net Assets and (2) the Statement of Activities . 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the Municipality as 
a whole and about its activities. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the 
current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Municipality' s net assets and changes in them. You can think of the 
Municipality's net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities. as one way to measure the 
Municipality's financial health, or financial position. Over time. increases or decreases in the 
Municipality's net assets are one indicator of whether its.financial health is improving or deteriorating. 
However, you will need to consider other non-financial factors, such as changes in the Municipality's 
property tax base and the condition of the roads, to asses the overall health of the Municipality of 
Ad juntas. 

4 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. we divide the Municipality into 
governmental activities most of the Municipality's basic services are reported here, including the 
municipal police, public works, garbage disposal , public energy and health services, and general 
administration. Property taxes. municipal license tax. state and federal grants finance most of these 
activities. 

Fund Financial Statement: Report the fi nancial position and results of operations of the Municipality's 
governmental funds. The fund financial statement components are the Balance Sheet-governmental funds 
and the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance. The fund financial 
statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds. not the Municipality as a 
whole. Some funds are required to be established by bond covenants. 

The Municipality's basic services are reported in the governmental funds, that uses an accounting 
approach which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end 
that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified 
accrual accounting. which measures cash and all other.financial assets that can readily be converted to 
cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Municipality's general 
government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance the Municipality's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between 
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmentalfunds in a reconciliation on this report. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statement: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in government-wide and the fund financial statements. 

THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE 

The Municipality·s combined net assets deficiency decreased in the current year by $1.70 millions, to 
total ($1.86) million at end of year. Table I and 2 focus on the net assets and changes in net assets of the 
Municipality's governmental and business-type activities for the current year. 

5 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Table 1 

NET ASSETS 

(in Million) 

Current and other assets 

Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long-term debt outstanding 

other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 

Restricted for: 

Debt services 

Capital project 

Other specified purpose 

Unrestricted 

Net Assets 

2007 
$ 10.22 

10.28 

20.50 

-19.6 

-4.46 

$(24.06) 

$ 7.77 

0.41 

0.76 

-12.5 

$ (3.56) 

Components of Net Assets 

2008 

$ 12.09 

13.39 

25.48 

-21.72 

-5.62 

M27.34) 

$ 10.74 

0.31 

0.81 

-13 .72 

$ 0 .86) 

current and Capi1al assets Long-term debt Other liabilities 
other assets outstanding 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Table 2 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

(in Million) 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 

Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Municipal taxes 
Gants and entitlements 
Other income 

Total Revenues 

Program Expenses: 
General Administration 
Public safety 
Education, culture and recreational 
Public works 
Health and welfare 
Housing 
Other 
Total Expenses: 

Increase in Net Assets 

2007 

$ 0.40 
1.30 
2.80 

1.10 
0.30 
4.30 

~ 
$ 1 J.50 

$ 3.30 
0.60 
0.80 
5.00 
J.80 
0.50 

_Q,_2Q 

12.90 

$_(1 40} 

$ 0.42 
1.27 
2. 13 

1.29 

1.21 
5.98 

~ 
$13 .28 

$ 5.39 
0.53 
0.77 

2.85 
1.83 

.45 
0.27 

12.09 

/ 

Net assets deficiency of the Municipality' s governmental activities decreased by $1.63 millions in the 
current year. Unrestricted net assets is the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-to-day 
operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal 
requirements. 

Financial analysis of the Municipality's Governmental Funds 

The Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate comp I iance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The focus of the Municipality' s governmental fund is to provide information on near-term 
inflow, outflow, and balance of spend able resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Municipality's financial requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government' s net resources avai lable for spending at the end of fiscal year. 

7 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Governmental Activities 

The principal revenues of the Municipality are composed of property taxes and grant contributions. The 
Mayor of the Municipality of Ad juntas continued with an aggressive collections procedure especially in 
the property taxes area and submitted state and federal proposals to get competitive grant awards. Also, 
the Mayor of the Municipality implemented an adequate budget control and record keeping, which 
benefits the Municipality in its management decisions and operations. These are the main reasons to end 
operations with a significant surplus. 

Expenses during the fiscal year ended June 30. 2008 was substantially related to the following: 

Table 3 

Governmental Activities 

(in Million) 

Total expenses 

2007 2008 

General Government $ 3.30 s 5.40 

Public Safety 0.60 0.52 

Public Work 5.00 2.85 

Education, culture and recreation 0.80 0.77 

Health and welfare 1.70 1.83 

Litigation settlement 0.60 

Interest on long term debt 0.30 ~ 

Totals SlD_O $ 11 64 

8 
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COMMONWEATB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Total Expense 2007 
1.7, 14"/o 0.3, 2% CGeneral Government 

$3.30. 27% 
11 Public Safety 

C Public Work 

0.8, 7% • culture ad recreation 

a Health and welfare 

C Interest on long-tenn debt 
0.6, 5% 

• Litigation settlement 

5, 40% 

0.27, 2% Total Expense 2008 

1.83, 16% 

$5.40' 47% 

• General Government 

CPublic Safety 

D Public Work 

0.52, 4% a Culture ad recreation 

• Health and welfare 

C Interest on long-tenn debt 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $11.64 million compared to $12.3 million last year. 
Table 2 presents the cost of each of the Municipality of Ad juntas largest programs. 

The major sources of general revenue are property taxes, municipal sales taxes, and grant and 
contributions not restricted, which in total represent $8.2 (87%) and $5.9 (86%) of all revenues in 2008 
and 2007, respectively. 

9 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

Property taxes 

T able 4 
Governmental Activities 

(in Million) 
General Revenues 
By major sources 

2007 2008 

$1.17 $1.29 
Municipal sales taxes .37 .95 
Grants and contributions 4.38 

Totals $5_£2 

Table 5 
Governmental Activities 

(in Million) 

5.97 

ll.21 

Program Revenues 
by major sources 

2007 2008 

Charges for service $ .48 $ .42 
Operating Grants 
and Contribution 1.36 1.27 
Capital Grants and 
Contributions 2.88 _lJl 

Totals $4.n $3.82 

10 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

$3.00 

$2.50 

$2.00 

$1.50 

$1 .00 

$0.50 

$0.00 4--~--

Program Revenues 
(in million) 

--~ 

Charges for service Operating Grants Capital Grants & 
and Contribution Contributions 

THE MUNICIPALITY'S FUND 

As the Municipality completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$6.19 million, which is more than last year total of $4.67 million. 

ln addition, these other changes in fund balance should be noted: 

• The Municipality has a proceeds for issue a long tern debt of $4,322 note fund. 
• This year the Municipality increases the property tax and sales tax collections. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Once the Municipality's budget for the fiscal year 2007-2008 was approved on June 2007, the financial 
decisions were taken based on the available appropriations. However, during the course of the year, the 
Municipal Legislative Body revised the Municipality of Adjuntas' budget to adjust the original 
projections to the actual needs of the citizenship. The budget amendments fall into various categories. 
The first category includes transfers between expenditure accounts and the second one includes revisions 
to the amount of budget originally approved. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

As of June 30, 2008, the Municipality of Adjuntas had $11.69 millions invested in a broad range of 
capital assets, including buildings, parks, roads, bridges and equipment. 

11 
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COMMONWEA TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Table 6 

Capital Assets at Year-End 

(Net of depreciation, in Millions) 

Governmental Activities 

2007 

Land and land improvements $ 1.98 

Buildings and improvements 5.68 

Construction in process 1.03 

Infrastructure 

Equipment 0.98 

Totals S2.61 

2008 

$ 1.98 

5.53 

3.33 

0.16 

~ 

S.11.68 

Construction in 
CapilaJ Assets at Year-end 2007 

Equipment 
10% 

Capital Assets at Year-end 2008 

Construction in 
process 

29% 

Equipment 
6% 

Buildings and 
Improvements 

59% 

Infrastructure 
1% 

Land and Land 
Improvement 

20% 

Buildings and 
Improvements 

47% 

More detailed infonnation about the Municipality's capital assets is presented in Note 9 to the financial 
statements. 

12 
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COMMONWEAIB OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

At year-end, the Municipality of Adjuntas had $21.74 millions, in bonds, notes and other outstanding 
debts as shown in Table 7. 

Bonds and Notes payable 
Advances from CRIM 
Other obligations 

Totals 

Advances from 
CRIM 
9% 

Bonds and Notes 
Payable 

19'Y. 

Table 7 
Outstanding Debt, at Year-End 

(in Thousands) 
Governmental Activities 

Outsta.ding Debt, at Year-end 2007 

2007 

$ 3.54 
1.66 

13.22 
llM.2 

2008 

$ 7.63 
1.78 

12.34 

~ 

Other obligations 
72% 

Advances from 
CRIM 

0 utstanding Debt. at Year-end 2008 

Bonds and Notes 
Payable 

35% 

8% 

Other obligations 
57% 

New bonds in the amount of$4.41 million were issued. The Municipality is required to limit the amount 
of general obligation debt to l 0% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality, for 
bonds to be repaid with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt services. Other obligations 
include accrued vacation and sick leave; and claims and judgments. More detailed information about the 
Municipality' s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 10 to the financial statements. 

13 
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COMMONWEATH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Municipality' s elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the fiscal year 
2009 budget. The most significant change in the next year's budget in comparison with the amounts 
included for the year ended June 30, 2008, is the increase in the estimated of municipal license and 
construction taxes. For these two revenue accounts the Municipality considered the taxes to be collected 
for the construction of various major projects as a part of the new administration governmental program. 

Budgeted expenditures are expected to rise accordingly to the increase in budgeted revenues. 

If these estimates are realized, the Municipality's budgetary General Fund balance is expected to increase 
modestly by the close of 2009. 

CONTACTING THE MUNICIPALITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers and creditors with a general overview 
of the Municipality's finances and to show the accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact us at the Municipality of 
Ad juntas, PO Box 1009, Ad juntas, Puerto Rico 0060 I. 

14 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

As OF JUNE 30, 2008 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE 

ASSETS ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES 

Cash and cash equivalents s 4,063 ,841 $ 1,183 

Cash with fiscal agent 4.992,466 
Accounts receivable: 

Other government agencies 1,310,378 180.669 
Property taxes 695.010 
Sale Tax 27.107 

Other assets 9,025 

Restricted cash 806,517 
Capital assets, net 11 .694,624 1.703.319 

Total Assets 22.783.426 2,700.7 13 

LIABILITlES AND NET ASSETS 

Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1.564,077 272,866 
Deferred revenue 2,032,745 
Due to other government agencies 347,967 
Long-term debt: 

Due within one year 1,300,730 96,628 
Due in more than one year 20.453,505 1.272.052 

Total Liabilities 25.699.024 1.64 1,546 

Net Assets: 

Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 10,406.305 334,638 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 634,820 
Revenue for replacement and others 806,517 

Unrestricted ( 13.956. 723) (8 1.988) 

Total Net Assets (deficiency) $-12,W~ Sl,0-5.2 167 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOTAL 

$ 4,065,024 

4.992,466 

1,491 ,047 
695,010 

27,107 
9,025 

806,5 17 
13.397.943 

25.484. 139 

1,836,943 
2,032,745 

347,967 

1,397.358 
2 1.725.557 

27,340.570 

10.740,943 

634,820 
806,5 17 

(1 4,038.711 ) 

~.Ll&56,4ll) 



-
-

-
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FUNCTIONS AND PROGRAMS 

Governmental activities: 

General administration 
Public safety 
Education, culture and recreational 
Public works and sanitation 
Health and welfare 
Interest 

Total governmental activit ies 

Business type-activities: 

Housing 

Total 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

ST A TEMENT OF ACTrVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

OPERA TING CAPITAL GRANTS 

EXPENSES 

$ (5,395,973) 
(529,849) 
(765,940) 

(2,846,016) 
( 1,833 .134) 

(271, 131 ) 

{I I ,642,043) 

(445.147) 

$(12.087, 190) 

CHARGE FOR 
SERVICES 

$419.515 

$419.515 

GRANTS AND AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS 

$ 225,000 

8 11,866 
Sl ,952,807 

235.331 

1,272,197 1,952,807 

180.669 

s 1,272, 197 $2. 133.476 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NET 
(EXPENSE)/ 
REVENUE 

$(5, 170,973) 
(529,849) 

45,926 
(893,209) 

(l,597,803) 
{271.131) 

(8,417 ,039) 

155.037 

$(8,262,002) 

(Continue) 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

Net (expense)/revenue 
General revenue: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 
Municipal tax 
Sale tax 

Grants and entitlements 
Licenses and permits 
Interest 
Rent 
Other 

Total general revenues 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets at beginning, as 
provisions reported 

Restatement 

Net assets at beginning. as 
restated 

Net assets at end 

GOVERNMENTAL 
ACTIVITIES 

$(8,4 17,039) 

1,286.622 
263,234 
950.695 

5,971.797 
700,871 

83,382 
26,432 

149.986 

9.433.019 

1.0 15,980 

( 4,960.029) 
1.028.451 

(3.931,578) 

$(2,215,528) 

BUSINESS­

TYPE 
ACTIVITIES 

$ 155,037 

20, 152 

1.815 

21,967 

177 004 

882, 163 

882.163 

$110521 161 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOTAL 

$(8,262.002) 

1,286,622 
263,234 
950,695 

5,971.797 
700,871 
103,534 
26,432 

151.801 • 

9.454.986 

1,192,984 

(4,077,866) 
1,028.451 

(3.049.415) 

$(1 ,856.431) 



-

-

-
-

-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

PROPRIETARY F UND 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receivable from tenants and HUD 
Interest 
Other cash receivable 

Administrative 
Management fees 
Salaries and wages 
Util ities 
Operating and maintenance 
Miscellaneous taxes and insurance 
Interest on mortgage 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Deposit to reserve for replacement and 

interest retained in account 
Deposits to and interest earned and retained 

for insurance escrow 
Withdrawal from insurance escrow 
Interest in residual receipt account 
Purchase of fixed assets 

Net cash used by investing activities 

Net cash flows used by financing activities: 
Mortgage principal payments 
Checks drawn in excess of cash balance 

Net decrease in cash 

Cash at beginning of year 

Cash at end of year 
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$4 15,453 
20,152 

l.815 
437.420 

(48,649) 
(32,444) 

(106,260) 
(l 9,296) 
(44,l 16) 
(21,420) 
(50.3 l 3) 

322.498 

(42,086) 

(22,732) 
20.731 

(93) 
(2.624) 

(46.804) 

(93,3 l 3) 
19.430 

(73,883) 

(5,765) 

6.949 

$ l, 184 

,. 



-
-

-

-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

PROPRJETARY F UND 

STATEMENT OF C HAS FLOWS (CONTINUED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Change in the net assets 

Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to 
net cash provided by operating activ ities: 

Depreciation 
Increase (decrease) in: 

Receivables 
Miscellaneous prepaid expenses 
Tenant security deposits 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll 
Accrued interest 
Tenant securi ty deposits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

19 

$ 177,004 

133,757 

( 184,864) 
1,794 
(499) 

(9,547) 
(2,033) 

(703) 
13 

(62.082) 

$ 114.922 



-
-
-
-

-

-
.... 

... 

-

Cash: 
Cash in bank including 
Cash with fiscal agent 

Receivables: 

Amount due from: 
Governmental agencies 
Other funds 

Property tax 
Sale tax 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenues 
Due to other fund 
Due to other government agency 

Total liabilities 

Fund balance 
Unreserved (deficit) 
Unreserved, reported in non major: 

Other purposes 

Total fund balance 

Total liabilities and fund balance 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

As OF JUNE 30, 2008 

STATE 
LEGISLATIVE 

DEBT JOINT 
GENER.\L SERVICE RESOLUTIONS $4,322,000 

FUND FU 'D FUND NOTE FUND 

$ 966,972 $1.317,356 
$592.971 $3.947.754 

448,619 3 1,691 
573.859 2.485.604 
538,887 156.123 

27.1 07 

$ 2 555 444 $ 780 785_ $3 802 960 $3 947 754 

$ 247,260 $ 667.932 
1.084,760 $ 145.965 
1.905,608 1.158.740 

347.967 

3.585.595 145.965 1.826,672 

( 1.030, 151) 634.820 1.976.288 $3.947,754 

( 1.030.151 ) 634.820 1.976.288 3.947 754 

$ 2,555 444 $180185 $3 802 260 $3 241154 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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OTHER TOTAL 
GOVERNMENT AL GOVERNME 'TAL 

FU 'DS FUNDS 

$1.779,513 $ 4.063,841 
451.741 4,992,466 

830,068 1,310,378 
1,005.557 4.065,020 

695,010 
27 107 

$4 066 879 $15 153 822 

$ 527,51 1 $ 1.442,703 
1,875.065 3, 105,790 
1,000,672 4.065,020 

347 967 

3.403.248 8.961A80 

5,528,7 11 

663.631 663.631 

663 631 6.192.342 

$4 066 812 $15, 15-3,822 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

IlECONCILIA TION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FuNDS 

BALANCE SHEET To THE STATEMENT OF NET AsSETS 

As OF JUNE 30, 2008 

Fund balances in governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net 
assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Deferred revenue in the governmental funds that are recorded as revenue 
in the statement of net assets. 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds: 

Bonds and notes payable 
Compensated absences 
Claims and judgments payable 
Advances from CRIM 
Accrued interest 
Due to other agencies 

Net assets of governmental activities 

2 1 

$ 6, 192,342 

11 ,694,624 

1,073,045 .. 

(7,631,000) 
(825,054) 

( 11 ,366,793) 
(1,775,089) 

(121 ,374) 
(156.299) 

$ (2,2151528) 



-
-
-
-
-

-

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN FuND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FuNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

STATE 
LEGISLATIVE 

DEBT JOINT OTHER TOTAL 
GEl'iERAL SERVICE RESOLllTIONS S4.322,000 GOVERJ"l\IENTAL GOVEIU'liME.'\'TAL 

F ND Fl':\D fll :'\DS NOTE Fll:\D Flr:\'DS FUNDS 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes $ 913 ,964 $ 199,868 $ I, 113,832 
Municipal taxes 263.234 263,234 
Sale Tax 629,191 321 ,504 950,695 

Grants and entitlements 5,400,638 $ 100,000 $3,274,729 8,775,367 
Licenses and permits 700,871 700,871 
Interest 11 ,273 14.531 22,118 $ 27,409 8,051 83,382 
Rent 26,432 26.432 
Other 138.145 11 841 149 986 

Total revenues 8.083.748 535.903 122. 118 27,409 3.294.62 1 12.063.799 

Expenditures: 
General administration 4.680.362 34,876 1,121,662 5,836,900 
Public safety 478.932 478,932 
Educational and recreational 593 ,021 593,021 
Public works 1,659,576 1,556.297 374,246 1,548,377 5, 138,496 
Health sanitation and welfare 671,718 1, 153,989 1,825,707 
Litigation 
Debt service: 

Principal 328,000 328,000 
Interest 211.358 211.358 

Total expenditures 8.083.609 539.358 1.591.173 374.246 3.824.028 14,412,414 

Excess of revenue over 
expenditures ~~--1.12 $(3 455) $il.469.055) $<346 837) $_(529 401) $ (2 348 61..5.) 

(Continue) 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN F UND BALANCE-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

STATE 
LEGISLATIVE 

DEBT JOl:\T OTHER TOTAL 
GE~ERAL SERVICE RESOLl'TIOJ'llS $4,322.000 GOVERNMl:~TAL GOVER 'ME~TAL 

ff ND FliND Fl'~D ~OTE Fl"ND FUNDS FUNDS 

Excess of revenues over expenditures $ 139 $(3,455) $ ( 1.469.055) $ (346,837) $ (529,407) $(2.348.6 15) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfer in 41 ,619 255,829 975,714 1,273,162 
Operating transfer out ( 1,231 ,543) (13.283) (27,409) (927) ( 1,273.162) 
Proceeds from loan 4.322,000 95,000 4,417.000 ----

Total other financing sources ( 1,189.924) 242.546 4.294,591 1,069.787 4,417.000 

Excess of revenues and other 
financing source over expenditures 
and other financing sources (l,1 89,785) 239.091 (1,469,055) 3.947.754 540.380 2.068,385 

Fund balance at beginning of year 159,634 395,729 3,445.343 123.251 4.123,957 

Fund balance at end of year ~) $..filA.820 $-1.216.2B8 $3,247,154 $ 663,631 $ 6,122,3~1 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 

MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGES IN F UND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL 

FUNDS To THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE FtSCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are 
different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities and changes in net assets, the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 
This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period. 

Governmental funds report principal payments on long-term debts as expenditures, 
whereas the principal payments reduce the long-term debt in the statement of 
net assets. 

Amount receivable from other agencies that are not available in the governmental 
funds financial statements. 

Change in accrued expenses and deferred revenues wh ich do not require 
the use of current financial resources: 

Compensating absences 
Litigation settlement 
Deferred revenue 
Interest 

Governmental funds report payments of other long-term debt as expenditures 
whereas the payment reduces the long-term is the obligate in the statement of 

$2,068,385 

2,597.767 

328,000 

112,534 

(179,606) 
514,207 
326,510 
(59,773) 

net assets. 302,872 

Proceed from issuance of a note was recorded as other financial sources in the 
funds financial statements, but the note increase long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net assets. ( 4.417,000) 

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the statement of activities. but 
they do not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore. 
depreciation expense is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (577,916) 

Changes in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ I .015.980 
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1. ORGANIZATIO N 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2008 

The Municipality of Adjuntas (the Municipality) is a political and legal entity with full legislative 
and administrative faculties in every affair of municipal character, with personal succession, 
existence and legal personality separate and independent from the governmental of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 

The municipal government is comprised of the executive and legislative bodies, which are elected 
every four years in the Puerto Rico general elections. The executive power is exercised by the Mayor 
and the legislat ive power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has twelve members. 

The Municipality provides the following services to its community: health. public works, education, 
public safety , housing, community and social services. welfare. culture and recreation, as well as 
many other general and administrative services. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Municipality relating to the funds included in the 
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting 
principles for local governments include those principles prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GAS B). the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the 
publication entitled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (when applicable). The more s ignificant policies of the Municipality are described 
below. 

Reporting entity 

A reporting entity consists of the primary government, component units, and other organization that 
are included to ensure that financ ial statements are not misleading. The primary government of the 
Municipality consists of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the 
Municipality. For the Municipality of Adjuntas. these include various services such as police 
protection, recreation (including parks), street maintenance and repair, sanitation, and general 
administrative services. The operation of each of these activities is directly controlled by the 
Municipality' s Legislative Body through the budgetary process. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

J UNE 30, 2008 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the Municipality is financially 
accountable. The Municipality has no component units. 

Government wide and fund financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e .. the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities) report information on all the activities of the primary government and its component units. 
For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. 
Governmental activities wh ich normally are support mainly by taxes and intergovernmental revenues 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and 
charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally 
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable 
with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include a) charges to customers or applicants 
who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods. services, or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment and b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

The fund financial statement segregate transactions related to certain functions or activities in 
separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. These 
statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non­
major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. 

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds: 

1) General Fund 

This is the operating fund of the Municipality and accounts for all financial resources, except 
those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

J UNE 30, 2008 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

2) Debt Service Fund 

This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest 
on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 

3) State Legislative Joint Resolutions Fund 

This fund accounts for revenue sources provided by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Legislature for the development of capital projects and other community services. 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting a nd financia l statement presentation 

The government-wide financial statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, both 
government and business like activities. are presented using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded at the time the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing ofrelated cash flows. Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The governmental fund financ ial statements are presented using the current fi nancial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and avai lable. Under this method revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabil ities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are 
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, except for debt service. compensated absences and claims and 
judgments expenditures which are reported when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes. licenses, and interest assoc iated with the current fisca l period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is 
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are 
considered to be measurable and avai lable only when cash is received by the government. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989 
generally are followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards 
do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of fol lowing subsequent private-sector guidance for their business­
type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not 
to fo llow subsequent private sector guidance. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2008 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued) 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include I) charges to customers or 
applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided. 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) 
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are 
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all 
taxes. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use. it is the government' s policy to 
use restricted resources first, than unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Proprietary fund financial statements include a statement of net assets, a statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in fund net assets, and a statements of cash flows for the proprietary fund 
wh ich causes of a low income Housing project know as Valle Verde Housing. 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the .. economic resources" measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly. all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) 
are include on the statement of net assets. The statement of revenues, expenses and change in fund 
net assets present increases (revenues) and decrease (expenses) in tota l net assets. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses 
are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. 

Operating revenues in the proprietary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary 
operations of the fund . All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating 
expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other 
expenses are reported as non-operating expenses. 

Cash, cash equivalents, cash with fiscal agent and investment 

The Municipality' s finance director is responsible for investing available resources. The Municipality 
is restricted by law to invest only in savings accounts and certificates of deposit with banks qualified 
as a depository of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or in instruments of 
the Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). The Municipality's policy is to invest 
any excess cash in interest bearing deposits with institutions qualified by the PRTD. Earnings from 
these funds are recorded in the corresponding fund as interest income. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2008 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash w ith fiscal agent in the governmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes 
issued for the acquisition and construction of major capital improvements. Cash with fiscal agent in 
the debt service fund represents special additional property tax collections retained by the Municipal 
Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) and restricted for the payment of the Municipality's debt service, 
as established by law. 

The Municipality considers all investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. 

lnterfund receivables and payables 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from other funds (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or advances to/from other funds (i .e .. the non-current portion of interfund loans). 
Interfunds recei vables and payables between funds within the governmental activities are eliminated 
in the statement of net assets. 

Capital assets 

Capital assets, which include property. plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which is normally 
immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, streets sidewalks, and 
drainage system), are reported in the applicable governmental columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. The Municipality has elected to not capitalize infrastructure acquired before the 
implementation date of GASB 34 (July I, 2003). 

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated historical cost. 
Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date donated. Additions, improvements 
and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capita lized. Other 
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. When hi storical cost is not 
avai lable it is estimated using historic sales of the year of the acquisition of the related capital assets. 

Depreciation in capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the fo llowing estimated 
useful lives: 

Building 
Equipment and vehicles 
Infrastructure 

50-40 years 
5-10 years 

40 years 

The Municipality decides when to capitalize an asset using a capitalization threshold of $25. No 
depreciation is recorded the year of acquisition. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTIN ED) 

JUNE 30, 2008 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Reservation of fund balance 

Reservations of fund balance represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a 
specific future use or are not appropriated for expenditure. The Municipality has the following 
reservations of fund balance: 

1) Debt/ service 

Represents net assets available to finance future debt service payments. 

2) Capital projects 

Represents the reservations of amounts avai !able under state grant programs and loans for capital 
projects. 

Risk financing 

The Municipality carries insurance to cover casualty. theft. tort claims and other losses. Insurance 
policies are negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the 
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the 
gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (the "CRIM") for the year 
ended June 30, 2004 amounted to approximately $93.773. The current insurance policies have not 
been cancelled or terminated. The CRlM also deducted approximately $240,385 for workers 
compensation insurance covering all municipal employees. 

Compensated absences 

Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to maximum of 60 days. 
Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the first day of work. 
Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum 90 days. In the 
event of employee resignation. the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the 
maximum allowed. 

Separation from employment prior to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all rights for 
compensation. except for employees with ten years or more of service who are entitled to sick leave 
pay up to the maximum allowed. 

Employees' maximum allowed vacations and vested sick benefits are accounted for in the statement 
of net assets. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
J NE30,2008 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Pursuant various Acts, the Municipality is required to cover annually the 3% increase (costofliving 
allowance) in the retirement plan of it' s retires employees. Substantially all of the employees may 
become eligible for these benefits of they reach normal retirement to while working for the 
Municipality. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. post employment benefits retirees amounted 
to $65,6 I 0. These benefits are recorded as expenditures when paid in the general fund. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Restatement 

The net assets as presented in 2007 financial statements has been restated to record unrecorded 
capital asset amounted to $I .028,451. 

3. PROPERTY TAX 

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, which is to be filed by May I 5 
of each year with the Municipal Revenue Collector Center (the CRIM), a governmental entity 
created by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each 
piece of real state and on each building. 

The assessment is made as of January I of each year and is based on current values for personal 
property and on estimated values as of 195 7 for real property tax. The tax on personal property must 
be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two 
installments by July l and January I. 

The CRIM is responsible for the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf 
of all the municipalities of Puerto Rico. Before the beginning of each fiscal year. the CRIM informs 
the Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuing 
fiscal year. Throughout the year. the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the initial 
estimated collections. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal 
year basis, where by a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and 
amounts actually collected from taxpayers. 
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3. PROPERTY TAX (CONTINUED) 

This settlement has to be completed on a preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal 
year-end, and a final settlement made not later than six months after year-end. If the CRIM remits to 
the municipality property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable 
from the CRJM is recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected 
by the CRJM. a liability to the CRJM is recorded at June. 30. 

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property taxes 
on the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Puerto Rico Treasury 
Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities. except for property assessed at 
less than $3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of Law No. 83 of August 30, 1991 , as 
amended, the exempt amount to be paid by Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the Municipalities 
was frozen as of January I. 1992. In addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of 
personal property taxes of up to $50.000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of 
less than $150,000. 

The annual rate for fiscal year 2008 is 8.53% for real property and 6.53% for personal property of 
which 1.03% of both tax rates are forthe redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of 
Puerto Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as fo llows: (a) 6.0% and 4.0%, respectively, 
represent the Municipality's basic property tax rate, which is appropriated for general purposes and 
accounted for in the general fund . A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund 
together with a percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico Electronic Lottery and subsidy 
from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all 
municipalities; (b) 1.50% represents the special ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and 
accounted for in the debt service fund. The Commonwealth also contributes an annual tax rate of 
0.2% of the property tax collected. 

On January 26, 2000, Public Law 42, as amended, was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obtain 
a loan up to $200 million. and for a term not exceeding 30 years, to allow for the financing of the 
debt that the municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of 
property tax advances vs. actual collections through fi scal year 2000-200 I . The amount that the 
municipalities will co llect from the additional property taxes resulting from the increase in the 
subsidy from the central government to the municipalities was assigned through this Jaw to repay 
such loan. The increase in this subsidy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 
1999. As of June 30, 2008, the amount due to CRJM amounting to $1.775.089 is presented as other 
long-term debt (see Note 9). 
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3. PROPERTY TAX (CONTINUED) 

4. 

Total property tax receivable, net of an allowance fo r uncollectible accounts of $1, 796.060, 
amounted to $695,010 at June 30, 2008. The composition of property taxes receivable and the 
related deferred revenues is a follows at June 30, 2008: 

General Fund Debt Service Fund Total 

Gross property taxes receivable $ 1,936,371 $ 554,699 $ 2,491,070 
Less: 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts ( 1.397,484) (398,576) ( l , 796, 060) 

Net property taxes receivable $__ 53A,£81 $ 156.123 $ 695.010 

Deferred (unavailable) property 
tax revenues in GFFS $_ 50ll43 Li45 965 $ 649.408 

VOLUME OF BUSINESS TAX 

The municipal license tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain businesses 
and industrial organizations that operate in the Municipality. The tax rates are 1.50% for financing 
institutions and .50% for the other business institutions. The taxpayers must file a return not later 
than April l 5 of every year and the tax is payable in two installments, due in July I and January 1 of 
the following fiscal year. T he amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount if 
payment is made on or before the filing date. The Municipality lev ied and collected during the year 
ended June 30. 2008, $157,680 corresponding to the fol lowing fiscal year volume of business tax. 
This amount was recorded as deferred revenue . 

5. SALE TAX 

The Municipal Legislature approved the Ordinance no. 3. series 2006-07 establi shing a sales tax to 
1.5% effective November I 5, 2006. Pursuant to the provisions of the Law number 80 of July 29, 
2007 and effective August 1. 2007, the citizenship contribution was uniformly establ ished in 1.5% of 
which l % is collected by the Municipalities and the remaining .5% is collected by the Treasury 
Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This Law uniformed the use of the contribution 
of 1.5% in the following activities; solid waste disposal costs, recycle, public works and 
improvements, health services and security service. 

6. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

lntergovernmental revenues sources consist of contributions received from certain quasi-public 
corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, such as the Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer 
Authority and the Puerto Rico E lectric Power Authority. In adition, the Municipality receives some 
subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which include, among others, a subsidy for 
general operations and for the financi ng of capital improvements. The intergovernmental revenues 
are recorded in the General fund. except for those that are legally restricted for expenditure for 
specified purposes which are recorded in the Other Governmental Funds. 
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7. DEFERRED REVENUE 

Municipal license tax collected in the fiscal 
year 2007-2008 corresponding to the 
following fiscal year. 

Portion of grants received for which qualifying 
expenditures have not been incurred. 

Property tax receivable but not available in the 
governmental fund financial statements 

Amount due from other agencies but not available in 
governmental fund financial statements 

8. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT 

Restricted cash in the business-type activities consists of: 
Escrow deposit 
Tenant security deposits 
Reserve for replacement 
Residual receipts 

$ 157,680 

1,875,065 
2,032,745 

649,408 

423,637 

$.3. 105.790 

$ 22, 114 
13,486 

764,711 
6,206 

$ 806,512 

Under the term of the Administrative Order, Valle Verde Housing (the Project) is required to set 
aside specified amounts and the surplus cash deposits for the replacement of property and other 
project expenditures as approved by USDA-Rural Development. 

The Project maintains a restricted cash account for insurance escrow. In addition, all tenant security 
deposits are deposited into a separate bank account and held in trust for the tenants until they vacate 
the property. Any amounts not returned to the tenant due to leave violations are transferred to the 
Projects' general operating account. Restricted funds are held in separate accounts and are not 
available for operating purposes. 
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Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30. 2008 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Primary Go\1ernment J une 30, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008 

Governmental activities: - Capital asset, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 1,983, 180 $ 1,983, 180 
Construction in progress 1,028.451 s 2.304,996 3,333,447 

3,011.631 2.304,996 5.3 16,627 
Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings 7,4 11 ,72 1 7,411 ,721 

Equipment and vehicles 3,687, 151 127,864 3,8 15,015 
In fr as tru ctu re 164 907 164 907 

Total capital assets being depreciated 11,098,872 292,771 11.391,643 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings 1,726.253 154,966 1,881,219 
Equipment and vehicles 2,709.477 422,950 3,132,427 -

Total 4,435,730 577 9 16 5,013,646 

Total depreciable capital assets, net 6.663,142 (285, 145) 6,377,997 

Governmental activities capital assets net 9.674.773 2,019.851 11,694,624 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 362,859 362,859 
Construction in progress 196,667 196.667 - 362,859 196,667 559,526 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Building and improvements 4,070,690 4,070,690 - Equipment 475 784 2,625 478 409 

4.546.474 2.625 4,549,099 
9 

Less accumulated depreciation: 
Building and improvements and 

equipment 3,271,548 133,758 3,405.306 

Total depreciation, capital, assets net 1.274.926 (131,133) 1,143,793 

Business activities capital assets, net $, I .637.1B5 $__ 6~~3:J L- .- $ l..103.312 
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9. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows: 

Governmental 
Act ivities 

Business-Type 
Activities 

General administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Education, culture and recreation 
Health, sanitation and welfare 
Housing 

Total depreciation expense 

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS 

$ 4 1,366 
50,917 

305,287 
172,919 

7,427 

$571..ill 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30. 2008 was as follows: 

Prima ry Government Beginning Ending 
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Notes and bonds payable $ 3.542.000 $4.417.000 $ 328,000 $ 7,631 ,000 

Other long-tenn debt: 
Claims and judgments 

payable 11 ,881 ,000 105,793 620,000 11,366,793 
Compensated absences 645,448 179,606 825,054 
Amount due to: 

CRIM 1,656.527 153,720 35,158 1,775,089 
PR Health Insurance 

Administration 421,434 421 ,434 
PR Electrical Power 

Authority 76,166 23,801 52,365 
PR Department of 192,668 88 734 103,934 

Total 18,415.243 4.856, 119 1,517, 127 21 ,754,235 

Business-type activities: 
Mortgage payable 1.461.993 93 ,31 3 1.368.680 

Total $~ .811.216 $.4.~~Jl.2 fil,61 Q,4:10 ~~ 
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350,000 

36,981 

28,560 
63 189 
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JUNE 30, 2008 

10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED) 

Governmental activities: 

A. Notes and Bonds: 

$245,000 Public Improvement Serial Bond of 1988 payable in annual 
installments of $15,000 to $1 7 ,000 through January 2011 plus interest at 5%. 

$595,000 Public Improvement Serial Bonds of 1988 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $35,000 to $42,000 through January I, 2011 , plus 
interest at 5%. 

$200,000 Public Improvement Serial Bond of 1990 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $10,000 to $15,000 through January I, 2015. plus 
interest at 5%. 

$465,000 Public Improvement Serial Bond of 1995 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $45,000 to $55.000 through July I, 2009, plus 
interest at 6.20% 

$1 ,355.000 Special Obligation Note of 1993 payable in quarterly installments 
ranging from $19.000 to $20,000 through April I, 2013 , plus interest at Libor 
90 days plus 1.25%. 

$400,000 Special Obligation Bond of 1996 payable in annual installments 
ranging from $20,000 to $40,000 through January I, 2015, plus interest at 
LIBOR 90 days plus 1.25% 

$1 ,365.000 General Municipal Obligation Bond of 2004 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $35.000 to $85,000 through July I. 2029 plus 
interest at 5%. 

$619.000 Special Obligation Note of 2006 payable in annual installments 
ranging from $82,000 to $106,000 through July I. 2012, plus interest at Libor 
90 days plus 1.25%. 

$619,000 General Municipal Obligation Bond of 2007 payable in annual 
installment ranging from $9,000 to $52,000 through July 1. 2031 plus interest 
at LIBOR 90 days plus 1.25% 

$95,000 General Municipal Obligation Note of 2008 payable in annual 
installments ranging from $10,000 to $5.000 though July 1. 2014 plus 
interest at LI BOR 90 days plus 1.25% 

$4,322,000 Special Obligation ote of 2008 payable in annual installments of 
$85,000 to $367,000 through July I. 2003 plus interest at 7.25%. 
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10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED) 

The annual debt service requirements to maturity bonds and notes payables of June 30, 2008 are as 
follows: 

Governmental - type Activities 

Notes and Bonds Payable 
Year ended J une 30 

2009 
2010 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014-2018 
2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 

Advances from CRIM 

Principal 

$ 222,000 
435,000 
407,000 
360.000 
378.000 

1,049,000 
1,225.000 
1,632,000 
1,923,000 

$7,631,000 

Interest 

$ 310,430 
483,219 
436,929 
431 ,562 
408,680 

1,815,998 
1,445,636 

965,336 
339,366 

~§)~ 

This amount represents the balance owed to CRIM at June 30, 2008 as described in Note 3 and is 
payable in monthly installments of $10.922 through 2032 including interest at 6.1 %. The advances 
from CRIM mature as follows: 

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest 

2009 $ 36,981 $ 109,412 
20 10 38,918 107,093 
2011 40,977 104,651 
201 2 43,164 102,080 
2013 45,491 99,372 
2014-2018 267,792 450,788 
20 19-2023 352,229 356,790 
2024-2028 466,741 232,71 6 
2029-2032 482.796 69,881 

$J,.22i.Q89 $1,632 7.83_ 
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10. LONG-TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED) 

Health Reform Insurance Liability 

The amount due to the Puerto Rico Health Insurance Administration is related with a unpaid balance 
from year ended at June 30, 1997 arose from with the implementation of Act No. 72 of September 7, 
1993, which established contributions for the medical services covered by the Health Reform based 
on the operational budget of the municipalities. The unpaid balance will be amortized through the 
proportional participation of the municipalities to the annual increase in e lectronic lottery income 
which will be collected and withheld by the Treasury Department of Puerto Rico. 

Business-type activities: 

Mortgage note payable in monthly installments of $17.157 including interest at 8% through 2018. 

The note is co llateralized by land and building. The note matures as fo llows: 

Year ended June 30 Principal Interest 

2009 $ 96,628 $109,256 
2010 100,018 105,866 
2011 103,575 102,309 
2012 107.254 98,625 
2013 111 ,074 94,810 

20 14-20 18 850,131 196,451 

$1,3_6..8..6.8.il li0-1.111 

' 
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11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan 

The Employees' Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its instrumentalities (the "Retirement 
System"), created pursuant to Act. No. 44 7 of May I 5, I 951. as amended, is a cost-sharing multiple 
employer defined benefit pension plan sponsored by. and reported as a component unit of the 
Commonwealth. All regular employees of the Municipal ity hired before January I , 2000 and under 
55 years of age at the date of employment became members of the Retirement System as a condition 
to their employment. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a refund of his/her 
accumulated contributions. 

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disabili ty benefits pursuant to legislation 
enacted by the Commonwea Ith' s legislature. Retirement benefits depend upon age at retirement and 
the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participation. 
Disability benefits are avai lable to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. 
However, a member must have at least ten years of service to receive non-occupational disability 
benefits. 

Members who have attained at least 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of 
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten years of 
cred itable services are entitled to an annual benefit. payable monthly for 1 ife. The amount of the 
annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the 
number of years of creditable service up to twenty years. plus two percent of the average 
compensation. as defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess of 20 
years. In no case will the annuity be less than $200 per month. 

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive the 
Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent of the 
average compensation. as defined. otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the average 
compensation. as defined. 

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first $550 of their 
monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $550 of monthly gross salary. The 
Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary. 

The Legislature of the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 305 on September 24, 1999, which amends 
Act No. 44 7 to establish. among others, a defined contribution savings plan program (the " Program,.) 
to be administered by the Retirement System. All regular employees hired for the first time on or 
after January 1, 2000 and former employees who participated in the defined benefit pension plan and 
are rehired on or after January I. 2000 become members of a Program as a condition to their 
employment received a refund of their contributions. ln addition, employees who at December 3 1, 
I 999 were participants of the defined pension plan. had the option, up to March 31 , 2000, to 
irrevocably transfer their prior contributions to the defined benefit pension plan plus interest thereon 
to the Program. 
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11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED) 

Act No. 305 requires employees to contribute 8.275% of their monthly gross salary to the Program. 
Employees may elect to increase their contribution up to 10% of their monthly gross salary. 
Employee contributions are credited to his/her individual account established under the Program. 
Participants have three options to invest their contributions to the Program. Investment income is 
credited to the participant' s account semi-annually. 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Municipality is required by Act No. 305 to contribute 9.275% of the participant's gross salary. 
The Retirement System will use these contributions to increase its asset level and reduce the 
unfunded status of the defined benefit pension plan. 

Upon retirement, the balance in the participant" s account will be used to purchase an annuity 
contract, which will provide for a monthly benefit during the participant's life and 50% of such 
benefits to the participant's spouse in case of the participant's death. Participants with a balance of 
$10,000 or less at retirement will receive a lump-sum payment. In case of death, the balance in the 
participant's account will be paid in a lump-sum to hi s/her beneficiaries. Participants have the option 
of a lump-sum or purchasing an annuity contract in case of permanent disability. 

Total employee and employer contributions to the above mentioned plans during the year ended June 
30, 2008 amounted to approximately $161.527 and $202,447. respectively. This amount represented 
100% of the required contribution for the corresponding year. 

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2008, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System. 

12. CONTINGENCIES 

Claims and Judgments: 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies. Any disallowed claims. including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of 
the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by the 
grantor cannot be determined at this time. although the Municipality expects such amounts, if any, to 
be immaterial. 

The Municipality is defendant and or codefendant in several litigations arising out of the normal 
Municipality's operations. Most of the cases are covered by insurance. Management, after 
consultation with legal counsel is of the opinion that the ultimate liability. in excess of insurance 
coverage. if any, resulting from such pending litigations will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Municipality's financial position. 
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12. CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 

The Municipality has been named defendant of a lawsuit filed by approximately 82 individuals who 
claim political harassment and discrimination. On December 3. 2001 the jury determined in favor of 
20 out of 82 plaintiffs for the amount of $6,956,400. During the year the ended June 30, 2005, the 
Municipality paid the amount of $1,500.000 to the plaintiffs. This amount was paid under an 
operating loan of $1,365.000 and the remaining amount was paid with general funds. In addition, the 
Puerto Rico Secretary of Justice ordered to the Puerto Rico Treasury Department to pay the 
remaining amount. For the remaining 62 plaintiffs, the parties informed the Court that they have 
settled the claims, and the Municipal Legislative Body approved the settlement. On November 2008, 
the parties stipulated to pay $12.500,000 to the remaining 62 plaintiffs. This sum should have been 
paid within one hundred and twenty days from the date of stipulation. 

As of June 30, 2008, the balance of such liability amounted to $11 ,261.000 which has been recorded 
in the governmental activities financial statements. 

Valle Verde Project: 

Based on a comprehensive Asbestos-Containing Materials (ACM) Survey engaged by the Valle 
Verde project' s management agent, it was determined that the project's buildings contain asbestos 
materials that need to be removed in accordance with Puerto Rico Environmental Quality Board 
(EQB) regulation with the use of proper engineering controls. Until removal, the material should not 
be disturbed. Therefore, the project's management developed an Operation & Maintenance (O&M) 
Plan to properly manage the asbestos material s. Such O&M plan should remain in force until the 
asbestos materials are removed. The estimated total costs of removal the material containing 
asbestos are not accrued in the financial statements. 

On May 19, 2008, construction began for various improvements to the project' s facil ities and 
infrastructure, including the removal of asbestos containing materials. As of June 30, 2008, the total 
estimated costs of construction are $3,362, 121 , which includes estimated asbestos removal costs of 
$463,608. The estimated construction cost w ill be paid with resources to be provided by two capital 
project grants totaling $2,763,637 awarded by Puerto Rico Department of Housing. In addition, 
resources totaling $600,000 from the project' s reserve for replacement account were authorized and 
committed by HUD to cover the remaining construction costs. 
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Revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 
Municipal tax 
Sale tax 

Grants and entitlements 
Licenses and pennits 
Interest 
Rent 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General administration 
Publ ic safety 
Education, cu lture and 

Recreational 

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF B UDGETARY COMPARISON 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

GENERAL FUND 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET BUDGET 

$ 906,1 04 $906, 104 
306,339 306,339 
516,000 516,000 

5,303.511 5,303,511 
152,130 152.130 
56,000 56,000 
33,000 33,000 

367.730 367.730 

7.640.814 7.640.8 14 

4,202,860 3,697,085 
565,450 489,637 

705.257 631 ,296 
Public works and sanitation 1,221,621 2,131,284 
Health and welfare 945,626 691.512 

Total expenditures 7,640,814 7.640.814 

Excess of revenue over expenditure $ $ 

44 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
FAVORABLE 

ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 913 ,962 $ 7,858 
263 ,234 (43,105) 
629, 191 113, 191 

5,400,638 97, 127 
700,871 548,741 
24,556 (31 ,444) 
26,432 (6,568) 

138.145 (229,585) 

8.097.029 456.21 5 

5,911,905 (2,214,820) 
478,932 10,705 

593,021 38,275 
1,659.576 471 ,708 

671.718 19 794 

9,315.152 (1,674.338) 

$(1,2L8,123} $(1 ,2 18 123) 



COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

NOTES To SCHEDULE OF B UDGETARY COMPARISON 

J NE30, 2008 

1. BUDGETS AND BUDGET ARY ACCOUNTING 

The Municipality follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
financial statements: 

I) Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for 
the General Fund. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for special revenue funds 
because effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through legal and contractual grant 
requirements provisions. 

2) On or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Municipal Legislative Body a proposed 
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July I. The operating budget 
includes proposed expenditures and the means for financing them. 

3) Prior to June 13, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. 

4) The Municipal Legislative Body approves. by ordinance budget appropriations by functional 
basis . The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any 
fund; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of any fund must be approved by 
the Municipal Legislative Body. 

5) Unused appropriations for the annual budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year. 

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actual results of operations, 
presented in the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures- Budget and Actual General Fund, is in 
conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipality for a better comparison with the 
budget information. 

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capital projects, debt 
service and special revenue funds because projects are funded on a multi-year nature, generally 
requiring severa l years to complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively achieved through 
general obligation bond indentures and legal and contractual grant agreement provisions. No legal 
budget is adopted for other thon general fund. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES To SCHEDULE OF BUDGETARY COMPARISON (CONTINUED) 
JUNE 30, 2008 

2. RECONCILIATION OF GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS 

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the revenues and expenditures of the General Fund at the end of 
the year, from the generally accepted accounting principles to budgetary basis, are as follows: 

Generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) basis 

Transfer in included as revenues in 
budgetary basis 

Budgetary basis 
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Revenues 

$8,083,748 

13.281 

$8.097.029 

Expenditures 

$8,083,609 

1.23 1,543 

$9.315.152 
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MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCH ED LE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

NUMBER DISBURSEMENT 

US Department of HousinK and Urban 
Development 

Passed through: 
Municipal Service Administration: 

Community Development Block Grant/ 
State Grant 

Direct Program: 
Section 8 - Housing Choice Vouchers 

US Department of Health and Human Services 
Direct Program: 

Head Start 

US Department of AKriculture 
Passes through: 

Puerto Rico Department of Education 
Child an Adult Care Food Program 

US Department of Horne and Security 
Passes through: 

PR Office of Management and Budget (GAR) 
Public Assi stance Grant 
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14.228 $ 804,374 

14.871 199,025 

93.600 870,597 

10.558 84,368 

97.036 426.115 

$2.384.479 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

JUNE 30, 2008 

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION: 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Municipality of Ad juntas and is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, 
amounts presented in the accompanying schedule agree to amounts presented in the basic financial 
statements. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING ST AND ARD 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Municipal Legislative Body 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Adjuntas, Puerto Rico 

I have audited the financ ial statements of governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Municipality of Adjuntas, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008 
which collectively comprise the Municipality of Adjuntas· basic financial statements and have issued my 
report there on dated December 5. 2008. Others auditors audited the financial statements of The Valle 
Verde Housing, as described in my report on Municipality of Ad juntas· financial statements. This report 
does not include the results of the other auditors· testing of internal control over financial reporting of 
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Financing Reporting 

In planning and performing my audit, I considered Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control over 
financial reporting as a basis for designing my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness 
of the Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, l do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Municipality of Ad juntas' internal control over financial reporting. 

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, I 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that I consider to be significant 
deficiencies 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED): 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management of 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect 
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of 
control deficiencies, that adversely affects Municipality of Ad juntas· ability to initiate, authorize, record, 
process. or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of Municipality of Adjuntas' 
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by Municipality 
of Adjuntas' internal control. I consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of 
finding and questioned cost as finding 01 -08 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected by Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control. 

My consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that 
might be significant deficiencies and. accordingly, would not necessary disclose all significant 
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However. I believe that none of the 
significant deficiencies described above is a material weakness. 

Compliance and Other Material 

A part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipality of Ad juntas' financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have direct and material 
effect on the determination of financ ial statement amounts. However, providing an opin ion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express 
such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed instance of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as finding 01-08. 

Municipality of Adjuntas' response to the findings identified in my audit are described in the 
accompanying schedule of finding·s and questioned cost. We did not audit Municipality of Ad juntas' 
response and accordingly, I express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Municipal Legislative Body, 
others within the entity, and federal award ing agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be 
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

~~ 
December 5, 2008 
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico 

License No. 1339 
Expires December I, 20 I 0 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH 
REQUIREMENT APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Municipal Legislative Body 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Adjuntas, Puerto Rico 

Compliance 

I have audited the compliance of the Municipali ty of Adjuntas, with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A- I 33 Compliance Supplement that 
are applicable to each of its major federa l programs for the year ended June 30, 2008_ Municipality of 
Adjuntas' major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of finding and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirement of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
Municipality of Adjuntas' management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality of 
Adjuntas' compliance based on my audit. Municipality of Adjuntas ' basic financial statements include the 
operations of the Valle Verde Housing (business type activities). which expensed $1 , 760,549 in federal awards 
which is not included in the schedule during the year ended June 30, 2008. My audit described below did not 
include the operation of the business type activi ties because those statements were audited by other auditors. 

I conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stated; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of State and Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-1 33 require that I plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program 
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Municipality of Adjuntas' compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I considered necessary in the circumstances. 
I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. My aud it does not provide a legal 
determination on Municipality of Adjuntas· compliance with those requ irements. 

As described in item 04-08 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost the Municipality of 
Adjuntas did not comply with req uirements regarding Procurement and Suspension and Debarment that is 
applicable to the HUD Community Development Block Grant. Compliance with such requirement is necessary 
in my opinion, for Municipality of Adjunta to comply with the requirement applicable to that program. 

54 



-
-

-

-
..... 

-

-
-

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENT APPLICABLE (CONTINUED): 

In my opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the Municipality of 
Ad juntas' comp I ied, in al I material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each 
of its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2008. The results of my auditing procedures also 
disclosed other instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which are required to be reported in 
accordance with OMB Circular A- I 33 and which are described in the accompanying schedules of findings and 
questioned costs as items 02-08 to 03-08. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Municipality of Ad juntas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal 
programs. In planning and performing my audit. I considered the Municipality of Adjuntas' internal control 
over compliance with requirement that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in 
order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on compliance, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, I 
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Municipality of Ad juntas' internal control over compliance. 

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant 
deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined below. However, as discussed below, I identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that I consider to be significant deficiencies and other that I 
consider material weakness. 

A control deficiency in an entity" s internal control over comp I iance exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees. in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. 
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency. or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely 
affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompl iance with a type of comp I iance requirement of a federal program that is more that inconsequential 
will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 1 consider the deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 02-08 to 
04-08 to be significant deficiencies. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency. or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
that a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity 's internal control. Of the significant deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost, I 
consider item 04-08 to be a material weakness. 

Municipality of Adjuntas' response to the findings in my audit is described in the accompanying schedule of 
finding's and questioned cost. I did not audit Municipality of Adjuntas' response and accordingly, I express no 
opinion on it. 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENT APPLICABLE (CONTINUED): 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the management and the Municipal Legislative 
Body of the Municipality of Ad juntas, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended 
to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

December 5, 2008 
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico 

License No. 1339 
Expire December I, 20 I 0 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Q UESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued 

Internal control over financ ial reporting: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency (s) identified 

that is not considered a material weaknesses. 

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness (es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not considered 

to be material weakness (es) 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for 
major programs 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section 51 O(a) of 
Circular A-133 

Identification of major programs: 

CFA Number(s) 

93.600 
14.228 

97.036 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A 
and type B programs: 

Audit qualified as low-risk audited? 
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Unqualified 

__yes _x_no 

_K__yes __ no 

_yes _K_no 

__ no 

_x_yes __ no 

Unqualified 

_•_no 

Name of Federal Program 

Head start 
Community Development Block 
Grants/State 's Program 
Public Assistant Grant 

$300,000 

__yes _K_no 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Q UESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING 

Finding No. 01-08 - General Fund Deficit: 

As of June 30, 2008, the Municipality closed with an accumulated deficit of $1,030, 151 in the 
general fund as presented in the statement of revenue. expenditures and changes in fund balance­
governmental funds. 

The deficit was caused by the overstatement of the estimated revenues and/or the incurrence of 
obligations without credit available in the budgetal)' accounts. 

The Article 7.011 (a) of Autonomous Municipal Act (Law 81), as amended, stay that if the Municipal 
closes its operations on deficit it must provide for sufficient resources to cover it during the next 
fisca l year. 

Section 3 of the Revised Regulation over Basic Standards for Municipalities of Puerto Rico (The 
Regu lation) states that it must be special care to prepare the revenues estimates so these do not 
results in budget appropriations in excess of available resources. 

We recommend that the Municipality take the necessary measures to reduce the accumulated deficit. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Q UESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 02-08 - Davis-Bacon Act 

Federal Program 

CFDA - 97.036 Public Assistance Grants 

Compliance requirement: 

Davis-Bacon Act 

Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

As part of my audit procedures I examined 9 disbursements to test the compliance with the Davis­
Bacon Act for Public Assistance Grants program. In six disbursements amounting to $521, 755, the 
contracts do not state that the contractor is required to submit such information. However, the 
contractor submitted the payrolls to the Municipality for examination. 

Criteria: 

The Davis-Bacon Act requires that all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 financed by federal 
assistance funds must be paid wages not less that those established for the locality of the project. 

Effect: 

The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action by the grantor. 

Questioned cost: 

None 

Recommendation: 

I recommend the Municipality to establish an adequate internal control system to ascertain 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNTAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Q UESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE Y EAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

SECTION III- FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Finding No. 03-08 - Davis-Bacon Act 

Federal Program 

CFDA - 14.228 Community Development Block Grant 

Compliance requirement: 

Davis-Bacon Act 

Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

As part of my audit procedures I tested 7 disbursements to test the comp I iance with the Davis-Bacon 
Act for Community Development Block Grant. In all disbursements tested amounting to $605,656 
the contracts do not state that the contractor is required to submit such information. 

Criteria : 

The Davis-Bacon Act requires that all construction contracts in excess of $2,000 financed by federal 
assistance funds must be paid wages not less that those established for the loca li ty of the project. 

Effect: 

The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action by the grantor. 

Questioned cost 

None 

Recommendation: 

I recommend the Municipality to establi sh an adequate internal control system to ascertain 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

Finding No. 04-08 - Procurement and Suspension and Debarment 

Federal Program 

CFDA - 14.228 Community Development Block Grant 

Compliance requirement: 

Procurement and Suspension and Debannent .. 
Category: 

Compliance 

Condition: 

As part of my audit procedures we tested 7 disbursements to test the compliance with the 
procurement and suspension and debarment requirement for Community Development Block Grant 
program. In two of the seven disbursements amounting $70,235 I found that the Municipality did 
not comply with suspension a debarment requirement and in one disbursement amounting to $39,060 
the Municipality did not comply with the procurement requirement. 

Criteria : 

Procurement: 

States, and governmental subrecipients of States, shall use the same State policies and procedures 
used for procurements from non-Federal funds. They also shall ensure that every purchase order or 
other contract includes any clauses required by Federal statutes and executive orders and their 
implementing regulations. 

Local governments and Indian tribal governments which are not subrecipients of States will use their 
own procurement procedures provided that they conform to applicable Federal law and regulations 
and standards identified in the A-102 Common Rule. 

All non-Federal entities shall follow Federal laws and implementing regulations applicable to 
procurements, as noted in Federal agency implementation of the A- I 02 Common Rule and OMB 
Circular A- I I 0. 
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COMMONWEAL TH OF PUERTO RICO 
MUNICIPALITY OF ADJUNT AS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2008 

SECTION III - FEDERAL AW ARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

Finding No. 04-08 - Procurement and Suspension and Debarment (Continued) 

Suspension and Debarment: 

Non-Federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making subawards under covered 
transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose principals are suspended or debarred. 
Under nonprocurement suspension and debarment rules in effect prior to November 26, 2003, 
covered transactions included procurement contracts for goods or services equal to or in excess of 
$100,000 (the "small purchase'· or "simplified acquisition threshold"). A change in the 
non procurement suspension and debarment rule took effect on November 26, 2003. As of that date 
"covered transactions'' include those procurement contracts for goods and services awarded under a 
nonprocurement transaction (e.g .. grant or cooperative agreement) that are expected to equal or 
exceed $25,000 or meet certain other spec ified criteria. All nonprocurement transactions (i.e., 
subawards to subrecipients), irrespective of award amount, are considered covered transactions. 

Effective November 26, 2003, when a non-federal entity enters into a covered transaction with an 
entity at a lower tier. the non-federal entity must verify that the entity is not suspended or debarred or 
otherwise excluded. This verification may be accomplished by checking the Excluded Parties List 
System (EPLS) maintained by the General Services Administration (GSA), collecting a certification 
from the entity, or adding a clause or condition to the covered transaction with that entity. 

Effect: 

The Municipality could be exposed to administrative action by the grantor. 

Questioned cost: 

$39,060 

Recommendation: 

I recommend the Municipality to establish an adequate internal control system to ascertain 
compliance with the Procurement and Suspension and Debarment requirement. 
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Finding and Questioned Costs 
Municipality of Adjuntas 
Corrective Action Plan 

Prepared March 2009 
FINDING NO. 01-08 General Fund Deficit 

Key Tasks/ Action 
Program Deficiency Objectives Items 

Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

The Municipality 
To prepare a balance 

Verify the budget None Section 3 of the Mayor, 
closed with an frequently to avoid Revised Regulation Director of 
accumulated deficit of budget of income and closed with deficit Over Basic Finance 
$1,030, 151 in the expenses to offer Standard for 
general fund as services to the Municipalities of 
presented in the 

community 
Puerto Rico 

statement of revenue, 
expenditure and 
changes in fund balance 
governmental fund . 

FINDING NO. 02-08 Public Assistance Grants - CFDA - 97.036 

Key Tasks/ Action 
Program Deficiency Objectives 

Items 
Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Public Assistance Grant Obta in all copies of Maintain relationship None Davis-Bacon Act Federal 
of Municipality of payroll for the all with all Contractors Program 
Adjuntas do not contractions contract that execute work to Director and 
observed the in excess of $2,000 municipality, obtain Municipal 
compl iance with Davis- finance by federa l all payrolls paid and Secretaty 
Bacon Act, few copies assistance Funds. other documents 
of the payroll were necessary with 
found. federal assistance 

fund. To prepare a 
check list with all 
document required to 
contractors before 
making payment. 
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Completion 
Actual lmplementati 

Target Date 
Completion on Progress/ 

Date Comments 

June 30, 2009 

Completion 
Actual lmplementati 

Target Date 
Completion on Progress/ 

Date Comments 

June 30, 2009 



,, 

Program 
Objectives 

Deficiency 

Community Obtain all copies of 
Development Block payroll for the all 
Grant of contractions contract 
Municipality of in excess of $2,000 
Ad juntas does not finance by federal 
observed the assistance Funds. 
compliance with 
Davis-Bacon Act, 
few copies of the 
payroll were found. 

Program Objectives 
Deficiency 

CDBG of The Municipality will 
Municipality do not ensure that every 
complied with the purchased order or 
Procurement and contract includes any 
Suspension and clauses required by 
Debarment federal statutes and 

executive orders and 
their implementing 
regulations. 

r r ( 

Finding and Questioned Costs 
Municipality of Adjuntas 

Corrective Action Plan 

. 
Key Tasks/Action Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Items 

Maintain relationship None Davis-Bacon Act Federal 
with all Contractors Program 
that execute work to Director 
mun icipality, obtain and 
all payrolls paid and Municipal 
other documents Secretary 
necessary wi th 
federal assistance 
fund. To prepare a 
check list with all 
document required to 
contractors before 
making payment. 

Key Tasks/Action 
Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Items 

Establish an adequate None A- I 02 Common Federal 
internal control Rule and OMB Program 
system to ascertain Circular A-110 Director, 
compliance with the Municipal 
Procurement and Secretary 
Suspension and and Finance 
Debarment Department 
requirement. Staff 
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Completion 
Actual lmplementati 

Completion on Progress/ Ta rget Date 
Date Comments 

June 30, 2009 

Completion 
Actual Im plementati 

Completion on Progress/ 
Target Date 

Date Com ments 

June 30, 2009 
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EXHIBIT-II 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2008 
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Schedule of Prior Finding 
Municipality of Adjuntas 

Federal Programs Corrective Action Plan 

Repared March 2009 

FINDING NO. 01-07-Waitin!! List - Section 8 
Program Objectives Key Tasks/Action Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff Completion 
Deficiency Target Date 

The PHA does I. Update written Establ ish supervision and None HCV Guidebook Director & Done 
not select from procedures. quality control measures. Technician 
waiting list in Keep the waiting list program 
accordance with 2. Prepare the manageable without 
the PHA waiting list creating a management 
selection according to the burden. 
policies. priorities and 

preference order. 

FINDING NO. 02-07 Public Assistance Grants 

Program Completion 
Objectives Key Tasks/Action Items Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

Deficiency Target Date 

Publ ic Obtain all copies of Maintain relationship with None Dav is-Bacon Federal June 30, 20 I 0 
Assistance payroll for the all all Contractors that Act Program 
Grant of contractions execute work to Director 
Municipality of contract in excess municipality and obtain 
Adjuntas do not of $2,000 fin ance all payrolls paid with 
observed the by federal federal assistance fund . 
compliance with assistance Funds. 
Davis-Bacon 
Act, few copies 
of the payroll 
were found. 
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Actual lmplementatio 
Completion Date n Progress/ 

Comments 

June 30, 2008 Corrected 

Actual Im pie men la ti 
Completion on Progress/ 

Date Comments 



.. 
Program 

Deficiency 
Objectives Key Tasks/Action Items 

Community Obtain all copies of Maintain relationship with 
Development payroll for the all all Contractors that 
Block Grant of contractions execute work to 
Municipality of contract in excess municipality and obtain 
Adjuntas do not of$2,000 finance all payrolls paid with 
observed the by federal federal assistance fund. 
compliance with assistance Funds. 
Davis-Bacon 
Act, few copies 
of the payroll 
were found. 

G .. . 
Program 

Deficiency Objectives Key Tasks/ Action Items 

CDBG of The Municipal ity Establish an adequate 
Municipality do will ensure that internal control system to 
not complied every purchased ascertain compliance with 
with the order or contract the Procurement and 
Procurement includes any Suspension and 
and Suspension clauses required by Debarment requirement. 
and Debarment federal statutes and 

executive orders 
and their 
implementing 
regulations. 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Corrective Action Plan 

G 

Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

None Davis-Bacon Federal 
Act Program 

Director 

G 

Obstacles Resources Lead Staff 

None A- 102 Federal 
Common Rule Program 
and OMB Director 
Circular A- 110 
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Completion Actual Im plementati 

Target Date Completion on Progress/ 
Date Comments 

June 30, 20 10 

Completion Actual lmplementatio 

Target Date 
Completion n Progress/ 

Date Com ments 

June 30, 20 I 0 



FINDING NO. 05-07Public Assistance Grants 

Progra m 
Deficiency 

Objectives Key Tasks/ Action Items 

Public The Municipality Establish an adequate 
Assistance wi 11 ensure that internal control system to 
Grant of every purchased ascertain compliance with 
Municipality do order or contract the Procurement and 
not complied includes any Suspension and 
with the clauses required by Debarment requirement. 
Procurement federal statutes and 
and Suspension executive orders 
and Debarment and their 

implementing 
regulations. 

r r r 

Municipality of Adjuntas 
Corrective Action Plan 

Obstacles Resources Lead Sta ff 

None A- 102 Common Federal 
Rule and OMB Program 
Circular A-110 Director 
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Completion Actual Im plementati 

Target Date Completion on Progress/ 
Date Com ments 

June 30, 2010 


